
 

Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 

Agency HIRTA Public Transit 

               Boone, Dallas, Jasper, Madison, Marion, Story, and Warren Counties 

      
 

Agenda   
 

Zoom Meeting:  +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
ID:   892 8108 5757     Password:  627357 
 
Lisa Heddens, Board Chair, presiding 

HIRTA July Board Meeting – AMENDED AGENDA 

Thursday, 07/24/2025 at 9:00 a.m. 

1. HIRTA Board Meeting Call to order 

2. Roll call of members 

3. Public comment   

4. Minutes 

A. June 26, 2025  

5. Financial report to receive and file June (June/Yearend report not ready)  

6. Action Items 
  

A. Health Connector ISU Contract Extension (Exhibit 1) 

• Consider Approval of Health Connector ISU Contract Extension   

B. ICAM Contract (Exhibit 2) 

• Consider Approval of ICAM Contract   

C. Reviewed Policies (Exhibit 3) 
Consider Approval of Revised D&A Policy per federal updates 

• Drug and Alcohol Policy  

D. FY26 STA Contract (Exhibit 4) 

• Consider Approval of STA FY26 Contract   

E. FY26 UWCI FY26 Agreement (Exhibit 5) 

• Consider Approval of United Way of Central Iowa (UWCI) FY26 Contract   

F. Story County (FY26 Asset) Contract Amendment (Exhibit 6) 

• Consider Approval of Story County FY26 Asset Contract Amendment  
 
7. Discussion / Informational Items   

A.  None 

8. Reports to the Board 
A. CIRTPA – Regional Planning Agency Director: Andrew Collings  
B. HIRTA – CEO: Julia Castillo 

9. Other business 

10. Next meeting:  8/28/2025   

11. Adjourn    

 

CHAIR 

Lisa Heddens 

Story County  

VICE CHAIR 

Diane Fitch 
Madison County 

 

TREASURER 

 Scott Longhorn 

Boone County 
 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Kim Chapman 

Dallas County 

 

Doug Cupples 

Jasper County 

 

Steve McCombs 

Marion County 

 

Brian Arnold 

Warren County 

 

 

  
 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Julia Castillo  

 

 

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 

Brooke Ramsey 

 

 

 

The Heart of Iowa Regional 
Transit Agency (HIRTA) Board 
of Director meetings are 
open to all individuals 
regardless of disability. Any 
person requiring a 
reasonable accommodation 
to participate HIRTA at (515) 
309-9283 at least two 
business days prior to the 
Meeting.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89281085757?pwd=OGVDcy9ySlZyZW5UaGVOWGFWUHNZZz09


Mee�ng Minutes 

Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 

 

June 26, 2025 

1. Call to Order: Chair, Lisa Heddens, called mee�ng to order at 9:00AM 
2. Roll Call: 

Present: Lisa Heddens, Diane Fitch, Scot Longhorn, Kim Chapman, Steve 
McCombs 
Employees: Brooke Ramsey, HIRTA Chief Opera�ons Officer; Andrew Collings, 
CIRTPA Director 
Absent: Doug Cupples, Brian Arnold, Julia Cas�llo 

3. Board Mee�ng Agenda: Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to approve board agenda, seconded 
by Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

4. Public Comment: None 
5. Public Hearing: 

A. Public Hearing for HIRTA Facility Equity Analysis: Mo�on by Diane Fitch to open 
public hearing for comment on Facility Dra� Equity Analysis, seconded by Scot 
Longhorn. Mo�on unanimously carried. No comments received. Mo�on by Scot 
Longhorn to close public hearing, seconded by Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously 
carried. 

B. Public Hearing for Proposed Fare Increase: Mo�on by Diane Fitch to open public 
hearing for comment on Proposed Fare Increase, seconded by Scot Longhorn. 
No comments received. Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to close public hearing, 
seconded by Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried.  

6. Minutes: Mo�on by Steve McCombs to approve April 14th 2025 Special Session and May 
22nd 2025 minutes, seconded by Scot Longhorn. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

7. Financial Report: Mo�on by Diane Fitch to receive and file May 2025 report, seconded 
by Steve McCombs. Mo�on unanimously carried.  

8. Ac�on Items: 
A. Approval of Proposed Fare Increases: Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to approve fare 

increase to $3 within town and $6 within county, seconded by Diane Fitch. 
Mo�on unanimously carried. 

B. Approval of FY2026 Budget: Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to approve FY2026 
Budget, seconded by Steve McCombs. Mo�on unanimously carried. 



C. Reviewed Policies: Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to approve the following revised 
polices: Accoun�ng Policy; Service Reduc�on and Fare Increase; and Bylaws, 
seconded by Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

D. FY2026 United Way of Story County Partner Agreement: Mo�on by Steve 
McCombs to approve FY2026 UWSC Partner Agreement, seconded by Diane 
Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

E. Resolu�on Authorizing Brooke Ramsey as Signatory for Iowa Department of 
Transporta�on in Julia Cas�llo’s Absence: Mo�on by Scot Longhorn to approve 
resolu�on authorizing Brooke Ramsey as signatory for Iowa D.O.T. in Julia 
Cas�llo’s absence, seconded by Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

F. Funding Agreement with City of Newton: Mo�on by Steve McCombs to approve 
FY2026 Funding Agreement with City of Newton, seconded by Scot Longhorn. 
Mo�on unanimously carried. 

G. Approve Access2Care Rate Amendment and Authorize Chief Opera�ons Officer 
as Signer: Mo�on by Diane Fitch to approve Access2Care rate amendment and 
approve HIRTA COO as signer, seconded by Steve McCombs. Mo�on unanimously 
carried. 

H. Acknowledgement of Treasurer Added as Signer: Mo�on by Steve McCombs to 
acknowledge Board Treasurer as being added as Signatory on United Bank of 
Iowa Investment Account, seconded Diane Fitch. Mo�on unanimously carried. 

9.  



Exhibit 1  Exhibit 1 Exhibit 1 
 

Exhibit 1  Exhibit 1 Exhibit 1 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit 1 
 
 

Exhibit 1  
Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 1 

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 1
  

Ex
hi

bi
t 1

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 1
 

 



Sponsored Research Agreement 
ISU AWD‐026186 
Amendment No. 2

ISU: 
Iowa State University of Science and Technology 

SPONSOR: 
Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency (HIRTA) 

ISU Principal Investigator:  Shauna Hallmark  Key Contact:  Brooke Ramsey 

Project Title (“Project”):  Complete Trip – ITS4US Deployment Health Connector 

Revised Period of Performance (“Period of Performance”): 
Start Date (“Start Date”):  08/15/2022   End Date (“End Date”):  03/31/2026 
Amount Funded This Action:  $0  Total Funds Obligated to Date:  $382,500 

Amendment(s) to Original Terms and Conditions 
This Amendment revises the above‐referenced Agreement as follows: 

No Cost Extension 
This is a No Cost Extension.  The Sponsored Research Agreement End Date is hereby extended through March 31, 2026. 

All other terms and conditions of this Subcontract Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

By an Authorized Official of ISU:   By an Authorized Official of SPONSOR:  

Signature 

Name:  

Signature 

Name:   

Title:  Title:  

Date:  Date: 



Exhibit 2  Exhibit 2 Exhibit 2 
 

Exhibit 2  Exhibit 2 Exhibit 2 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit 2 
 
 

Exhibit 2  
Exhibit 2 

Exhibit 2 

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 2
  

Ex
hi

bi
t 2

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 2
 

 







06-30-2025
07-03-2025



Exhibit 3  Exhibit 3 Exhibit 3 
 

Exhibit 3  Exhibit 3 Exhibit 3 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit 3 
 
 

Exhibit 3  
Exhibit 3 

Exhibit 3 

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 3
  

Ex
hi

bi
t 3

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 3
 

 



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 
 

Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Effective as of 07/24/2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Adopted by: HIRTA BOARD of Directors          
         Date Adopted: [10/08/2018] 

Last Revised:  [07/24/2025] 

Drug and Alcohol Policy  



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Purpose of Policy ................................................................................................................................. 3 

2. Covered Employees ............................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Prohibited Behavior ............................................................................................................................ 4 

4. Consequences for Violations ............................................................................................................... 4 

5. Circumstances for Testing ................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Testing Procedures .............................................................................................................................. 7 

7. Test Refusals........................................................................................................................................ 7 

8. Voluntary Self-Referral ........................................................................................................................ 8 

9. Prescription Drug Use ......................................................................................................................... 9 

10. Contact Person .................................................................................................................................... 9 

Attachment A: Covered Positions ............................................................................................................... 10 

 

  



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

1.  Purpose of Policy 
This policy complies with 49 CFR Part 655, as amended and 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. Copies of 
Parts 655 and 40 are available in the drug and alcohol program manager’s office and can be found on the 
internet at the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Drug and Alcohol Program website 
http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/.  

All covered employees are required to submit to drug and alcohol tests as a condition of employment in 
accordance with 49 CFR Part 655. 

Portions of this policy are not FTA-mandated, but reflect Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency’s 
policy. These additional provisions are identified by bold text.  

In addition, DOT has published 49 CFR Part 32, implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
which requires the establishment of drug-free workplace policies and the reporting of certain drug-related 
offenses to the FTA.  

All Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency employees are subject to the provisions of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988. 

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the covered workplace. An employee who is convicted of any criminal drug statute for 
a violation occurring in the workplace shall notify Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency’s 
Designated Employer Representative in writing no later than five days after such conviction. 

Employees must abide by the terms of this policy as a condition of employment.  

2.  Covered Employees 
This policy applies to every person, including an applicant or transferee, who performs or will perform a 
“safety-sensitive function” as defined in Part 655, section 655.4.  

You are a covered employee if you perform any of the following: 

• Operating a revenue service vehicle, in or out of revenue service 
• Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license  
• Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle 
• Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul and rebuilding) of a revenue service vehicle or 

equipment used in revenue service 
• Carrying a firearm for security purposes 

See Attachment A for a list of covered positions by job title.  

http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/


FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

3.  Prohibited Behavior  
Use of illegal drugs is prohibited at all times.  Prohibited drugs include: 

• marijuana 
• cocaine 
• phencyclidine (PCP) 
• opioids 
• amphetamines 

All covered employees are prohibited from performing or continuing to perform safety-sensitive functions 
while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.  

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol while performing safety-sensitive job 
functions or while on-call to perform safety-sensitive job functions. If an on-call employee has consumed 
alcohol, they must acknowledge the use of alcohol at the time that they are called to report for duty. If the 
on-call employee claims the ability to perform his or her safety-sensitive function, he or she must take an 
alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 prior to performance. 

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol within four (4) hours prior to the 
performance of safety-sensitive job functions.  

All covered employees required to take a post-accident test are prohibited from consuming alcohol for 
eight (8) hours following involvement in an accident or until he or she submits to the post-accident drug 
and alcohol test, whichever occurs first.  

4.  Consequences for Violations 
Following a positive drug or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) test result or test refusal, the employee will 
be immediately removed from safety-sensitive duty and provided with contact information for Substance 
Abuse Professionals (SAPs).  

Following a BAC of 0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, the employee will be immediately removed from 
safety-sensitive duties until the start of their next regularly scheduled duty period (but for not less than 
eight hours) unless a retest results in the employee’s alcohol concentration being less than 0.02.  

Zero Tolerance 
Per Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency policy, any employee who tests positive for drugs or 
alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) or refuses to test will be terminated from employment. 



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

5. Circumstances for Testing 

Pre-Employment Testing 
A negative pre-employment drug test result is required before an employee can first perform safety-
sensitive functions. If a pre-employment test is cancelled, the individual will be required to undergo 
another test and successfully pass with a verified negative result before performing safety-sensitive 
functions. 
 
If a covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive function for 90 or more consecutive calendar 
days, and has not been in the random testing pool during that time, the employee must take and pass a 
pre-employment test before he or she can return to a safety-sensitive function.  
 
A covered employee or applicant who has previously failed or refused a DOT drug and/or alcohol test 
must provide proof of having successfully completed a referral, evaluation, and treatment plan meeting 
DOT requirements.  
 

Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
All covered employees shall be subject to a drug and/or alcohol test when Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 
Agency has reasonable suspicion to believe that the covered employee has used a prohibited drug and/or 
engaged in alcohol misuse. A reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made by a trained 
supervisor or other trained company official on the basis of specific, contemporaneous, articulable 
observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee.  
 
Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion drug testing any time while on duty. Covered 
employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion alcohol testing while the employee is performing 
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after 
the employee has ceased performing such functions. 
 

Post-Accident Testing 
Covered employees shall be subject to post-accident drug and alcohol testing under the following 
circumstances:  
 

Fatal Accidents 
As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of a human life, drug and alcohol 
tests will be conducted on each surviving covered employee operating the public transportation 
vehicle at the time of the accident. In addition, any other covered employee whose performance 
could have contributed to the accident, as determined by Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
using the best information available at the time of the decision, will be tested.  

 
Non-fatal Accidents  



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss of a human life, drug and 
alcohol tests will be conducted on each covered employee operating the public transportation 
vehicle at the time of the accident if at least one of the following conditions is met: 

(1) The accident results in injuries requiring immediate medical treatment away from the 
scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing 
factor to the accident 

(2) One or more vehicles incurs disabling damage and must be towed away from the 
scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing 
factor to the accident 

(3) The vehicle is a rail car, trolley car or bus, or vessel, and is removed from operation, 
unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing factor to 
the accident 
 

In addition, any other covered employee whose performance could have contributed to the 
accident, as determined by Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency using the best information 
available at the time of the decision, will be tested. 

 
A covered employee subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available, or it is considered a 
refusal to test. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the delay of necessary medical 
attention for the injured following an accident or to prohibit a covered employee from leaving the 
scene of an accident for the period necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the accident or to 
obtain necessary emergency medical care. 
 

Random Testing 
Random drug and alcohol tests are unannounced and unpredictable, and the dates for administering 
random tests are spread reasonably throughout the calendar year. Random testing will be conducted at all 
times of the day when safety-sensitive functions are performed.  
 
Testing rates will meet or exceed the minimum annual percentage rate set each year by the FTA 
administrator. The current year testing rates can be viewed online at 
www.transportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates.  
 
The selection of employees for random drug and alcohol testing will be made by a scientifically valid 
method, such as a random number table or a computer-based random number generator. Under the 
selection process used, each covered employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time 
selections are made.  
 
A covered employee may only be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while the employee is performing 
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after 
the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be randomly tested for 
prohibited drug use anytime while on duty.  
 

http://www.transportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates


FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Each covered employee who is notified of selection for random drug or random alcohol testing must 
immediately proceed to the designated testing site.  
 

6.  Testing Procedures 
All FTA drug and alcohol testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, as amended.  
 

Dilute Urine Specimen 
If a Pre-Employment test results in a negative dilute test result, Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
will conduct one additional retest.  The result of the second test will be the test of record.  If there is a 
negative dilute test result and the test type was not a Pre-Employment test, Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 
Agency will accept the test result and there will be no retest, unless the creatinine concentration of a 
negative dilute specimen was greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL, but less than or equal to 5 mg/dL. 
 
Dilute negative results with a creatinine level greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL but less than or equal to 5 
mg/dL require an immediate recollection under direct observation (see 49 CFR Part 40, section 40.67).  
 

Split Specimen Test 
In the event of a verified positive test result, or a verified adulterated or substituted result, the employee 
can request that the split specimen be tested at a second laboratory. Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 
Agency guarantees that the split specimen test will be conducted in a timely fashion. The Heart of Iowa 
Regional Transit Agency will ensure that the cost for the split specimen is covered in order for a 
timely analysis of the sample, however, the employee is responsible for reimbursing HIRTA the cost 
of any split sample test that reconfirms the original test. 
 

Oral Fluid Test  
All oral fluid collections are directly observed because they are always collected in front of the collector. 
As the employer, HIRTA retains the right to choose the collection methodology for all DOT-mandated 
drug and alcohol tests, including subsequent collections following shy bladder, dry mouth or other tests 
requiring a directly observed collection. Upon availability of approved oral fluid testing, HIRTA will 
utilize this testing method for all applicable testing reasons. HIRTA will notify all safety sensitive 
employees of any changes to collection procedures or implementation of new testing methodologies.  

7.  Test Refusals 
As a covered employee, you have refused to test if you: 
 
(1) Fail to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a reasonable time, as determined by 

Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency. 



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

(2) Fail to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete.  An employee who leaves the 
testing site before the testing process commences for a pre-employment test has not refused to test.  

(3) Fail to provide a specimen for a drug or alcohol test. An employee who does not provide a specimen 
because he or she has left the testing site before the testing process commenced for a pre-
employment test has not refused to test. 

(4) In the case of a directly-observed or monitored urine drug collection, fail to permit monitoring or 
observation of your provision of a specimen. 

(5) Fail to provide a sufficient specimen for a drug or alcohol test without a valid medical explanation. 
(6) Fail or decline to take a second drug test as directed by the collector or Heart of Iowa Regional 

Transit Agency. 
(7) Fail to undergo a medical evaluation as required by the MRO or Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 

Agency’s Designated Employer Representative (DER). 
(8) Fail to cooperate with any part of the testing process. 
(9) Fail to follow an observer’s instructions to raise and lower clothing and turn around during a 

directly-observed urine drug test. 
(10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device used to tamper with the collection process. 
(11) Admit to the adulteration or substitution of a specimen to the collector or MRO. 
(12) Refuse to sign the certification at Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing Form (ATF). 
(13) Fail to remain readily available following an accident. 
 
As a covered employee, if the MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test result, 
you have refused to take a drug test.  

As a covered employee, if you refuse to take a drug and/or alcohol test, you incur the same consequences 
as testing positive and will be immediately removed from performing safety-sensitive functions, and 
provided with contact information for SAPs. 

 

8.  Voluntary Self-Referral 
Any employee who has a drug and/or alcohol abuse problem and has not been notified of the 
requirement to submit to reasonable suspicion, random or post-accident testing or has not refused a 
drug or alcohol test may voluntarily refer her or himself to the Heart of Iowa Regional Transit 
Agency, who will refer the individual to a substance abuse counselor for evaluation and treatment.  
 
The substance abuse counselor will evaluate the employee and make a specific recommendation 
regarding the appropriate treatment.  Employees are encouraged to voluntarily seek professional 
substance abuse assistance before any substance use or dependence affects job performance. 
 
Any safety-sensitive employee who admits to a drug and/or alcohol problem will immediately be 
removed from his/her safety-sensitive function and will not be allowed to perform such function 
until successful completion of a prescribed rehabilitation program. 



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

9.  Prescription Drug Use 
The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited. 
However, the use of any substance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental 
functioning, motor skills, or judgment may be adversely affected must be reported to the Heart of 
Iowa Regional Transit Agency’s Designated Employer Representative.  Medical advice should be 
sought, as appropriate, while taking such medication and before performing safety-sensitive duties. 

10. Contact Person 
For questions about the Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency’s anti-drug and alcohol misuse program, 
contact Brooke Ramsey, Designated Employer Representative bramsey@ridehirta.com 515-309-9282 

 
Title/Provider 

 
Name/Address/Phone 

 
Program Manager 

 
Julia Castillo, Chief Executive Officer (CEO)  
2824 104th Street 
Urbandale, IA 50322 
515-309-9281 

 
Designated Employer Representative 

 
Brooke Ramsey, Chief Operations Officer (COO) 
2824 104th Street 
Urbandale, IA 50322 
515-309-9282 

 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) 

 

Employee and Family Resources Insurance 
Exchange Bldg. 
505 5th Ave., Suite 600, Des Moines, IA. 50309 

 
Medical Review Officers  

 
   Dr Phillip Lopez 

   doctorphilngood@gmail.com 
a/o January 2020 

 
National Hotline and Help Lines 

 
National Cocaine Hotline: 1-800-COCAINE 
American Council on Alcoholism Help Line: 1-800-527-5344 National 
Institute on Drug Abuse Hot Line: 1-800-662 HELP Alcoholics 
Anonymous: 212-686-1100 

  

mailto:bramsey@ridehirta.com
mailto:doctorphilngood@gmail.com


FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy – Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Attachment A: Covered Positions  

 
Title/Provider 

 
Testing Authority 

 
Driver 

 
Federal Transit Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit 4  Exhibit 4 Exhibit 4 
 

Exhibit 4  Exhibit 4 Exhibit 4 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit 4 
 
 

Exhibit 4  
Exhibit 4 

Exhibit 4 

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 4
  

Ex
hi

bi
t 4

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 4
 

 





Exhibit 5  Exhibit 5 Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 5  Exhibit 5 Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 5 
Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 5 Ex
hi

bi
t 5

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 5
 

Ex
hi

bi
t 5

 























Exhibit 6  Exhibit 6 Exhibit 6 

Exhibit 6  Exhibit 6 Exhibit 6 

Exhibit 6 

Exhibit 6 
Exhibit 6 

Exhibit 6 Ex
hi

bi
t 6

 
Ex

hi
bi

t 6
 

Ex
hi

bi
t 6

 



Story County 

Provider and Program Participation Agreement 

Amendment No. 1 

 
1. This amendment is entered into this ________ day of _______________ is by and between 

Story County and Heart of Iowa Transit Agency (Provider), parties to the original agreement 

effective _____________________. 

 

2. The agreement is amended as follows: Attachment A is removed and replaced in its 

entirety with the following attachment A: 

Amendment Effective __________________ 

 ATTACHMENT A 

SERVICE DEFINITIONS AND RATES 

FISCAL YEAR: 2026 

Heart of Iowa Transit Agency 

 

Service Description Unit of Service Rate 

See Attachment A as revised See Attachment A as revised See Attachment A as revised 

 
 

 

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement identified in the caption hereof shall 

remain in full force and effect except as specifically modified by this amendment. If there is 

conflict between this amendment and the agreement, the terms of this amendment will 

prevail. 

 

 
This Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto, through their duly authorized officials. 

 

 

STORY COUNTY: Heart of Iowa Transit Agency: 

 

By: ____________________________________________ By: _______________________________________ 

 

Print Name: ____________________________________ Print Name: _______________________________ 

 

Print Title: _____________________________________ Print Title: ________________________________ 
 

Date: __________________________________________ Date: _____________________________________ 
 

  

 

Lisa Heddens 

Chair, Story County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

7/1/25 (effective date) 

Julia Castillo 

CEO 



2 

 

Amendment Effective __________________ 

ATTACHMENT A 

SERVICE DEFINITIONS AND RATES 

FISCAL YEAR:  2026 

Heart of Iowa Transit Agency 

 

HIRTA 

Service Description Not to Exceed Unit of Service Rate 

Transportation - City of Ames $13,000 One Way Trip $21.30 

Transportation - Story County $115,000 One Way Trip $152.90 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 


